Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of DMI Finance Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of DMI Finance Private Limited
(“the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act"”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 38 of the financial statement which describes the extent to which CoVID-19
Pandemic impact the Company’s operations and financial results will depends on future developments,
which are highly uncertain. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements.

S.R. Batliboi & Assoc
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(a) Impairment of financial instruments (including provision for expected credit losses)
(as described in note 6 of the Ind AS financial statements)

The Company’s impairment provision for
financial assets (designated at amortized
cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income) is based on the
expected credit loss approach laid down
under ‘Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments’.
Ind AS 109 requires the Company to
exercise significant judgement while
applying principles and other
requirements of the standard in addition
to the identification and adequacy of
provision for impairment of its financial
instruments using the expected credit
loss (ECL) approach, which involves an
estimation of probability-weighted loss
on the financial instruments over their
life, considering reasonable and
supportable information about past
events, current conditions, and forecasts
of future economic conditions which
could impact the credit quality of its
loans and advances. In the process, a
significant degree of judgement has been
applied by the management in respect of
following matters:

a. Defining thresholds for ‘significant
increase in credit risk’ and ‘default’.

b. Grouping of loans under
homogenous pools to determine
probability of default on a collective
basis and calculation of past default
rates.

c. Determining effect of less frequent
past events on future probability of
default.

d. Estimation of management overlay
for macro-economic factors which
could impact the credit quality of
the loans.

Additional considerations on account of
CoViD-19

Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India
circular dated March 27, 2020 (“RBI
circular™) allowing lending institutions to
offer a moratorium to customers on
payment of instalments falling due
between March 1, 2020 and May 31,
2020, the Company has extended a
moratorium to its borrower in
accordance with its Board approved
policy as described in Note 6.2.

In accordance with the guidance from
Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI), extension of the moratorium

Performed inquiries  with the Company's
management and its risk management function to
assess the impact of lock-down on the business
activities of the Company.

Assessed the Company's policy with respect to
moratorium pursuant to the RBI circular and tested
the implementation of such policy on a sample basis.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the management
estimates by understanding the process of ECL
estimation and related assumptions and tested the
controls around data extraction and validation.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based on
their past-due status to check compliance with
requirement of Ind AS 109. Tested a sample of
performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether any
SICR or loss indicators were present requiring them
to be classified under stage 2 or 3.

Assessed the additional considerations applied by
the management for staging of loans as SICR/ default
in view of Company’s policy on moratorium.

Tested the ECL model, including assumptions and
underlying computation. Tested the input data used
for determining the PD and LGD rates and agreed the
data with the underlying books of accounts and
records.

Tested assumptions used by the management in
determining the overlay for macro-economic factors
(including CoVID-19 pandemic).

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of
ECL provision performed by the Company in
spreadsheets.

Compared the disclosures included in the Ind AS
financial statements in respect of expected credit
losses with the requirements of Ind AS 107 and 109.
Reviewed specific disclosures made in the Ind AS
financial statements with regards to the impact of
CoVID-19 on ECL estimation.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

to borrowers by itself is not considered to
result in a SICR for a borrower, however
the entity needs to evaluate whether the
borrowers to which moratorium is
granted will remain regular once the
moratorium period gets over. The
Company has recorded a management
overlay as part of its ECL, to reflect
among other things an increased risk of
deterioration in macro-economic factors
caused by Novel Coronavirus (CoVID-19)
pandemic. In accordance with the
guidance in Ind AS 109, the management
overlay estimate takes into account
reasonably and supportable information
without incurring significant cost. The
actual credit losses for the next 12
months could be significantly different
than the ECL estimates prepared by the
Company depending upon the impact and
duration of the pandemic and various
regulatory  and policy = measures
announced by the Government.

IT systems and controls

The financial accounting and reporting
systems of the Company are
fundamentally reliant on IT systems and

IT controls to process significant
transaction volumes. Automated
accounting procedures and IT

environment controls, which include IT
governance, general IT controls over
program development and changes,
access to programs and data and IT
operations, are required to be designed
and to operate effectively to ensure
accurate financial reporting.

Any gaps in the IT control environment
could result in a material misstatement of
the financial accounting and reporting
records.

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature
and complexity of the IT environment,
the assessment of the general IT controls
and the application controls specific to
the accounting and preparation of the
financial information is considered to be
a key audit matter.

We performed the following procedures for testing IT
general controls and for assessing the reliability of
electronic data processing, assisted by specialized IT
auditors:

Tested the design and operating effectiveness of IT
access controis over the information systems that
are critical to financial reporting.

Tested IT general controls (logical access, changes
management and aspects of IT operational controls).
This included testing that requests for access to
systems were appropriately reviewed and
authorized.

Tested the Company’'s periodic review of access
rights. We inspected requests of changes to systems
for appropriate approval and authorization.

In addition to the above, we tested the design and
operating effectiveness of certain automated and IT
dependent manual controls that were considered as
key internal controls over financial reporting.

Where deficiencies were
compensating controls or
procedures.

identified, we tested
performed alternate

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s Report but does not include the standalone ind AS
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The other information is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.
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Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and to comply with the relevant
applicable requirements of the standard on auditing for auditor’s responsibility in relation to other
information in documents containing audited financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management for the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Resporisibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

> Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year
ended March 31, 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(f) With

respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(9) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2020;

(h) With
Rule

respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the

best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Chirag
Partner

¢

-

in

Membership Number: 115385

UDIN: 20115385AAAABP2581

Mumbai
July 3, 2020
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other quél and regulatory requirements"
of our report of even date

Re: DMI Finance Private Limited

() (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is regular
programme of verification, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to-the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable
properties included in property, plant and equipment of the company and accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the order are not applicable to the company.

(i) The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under clause
3 (ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of
the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon.

w The Company has not accep;ced any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for the services of the Company.

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, value
added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. The
provisions relating to duty of excise and sales-tax are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund,.employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty
of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at
the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-tax,
service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or dues
to debenture holders.

@ix) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised
any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer.

Further, monies raised by the Company by way of term loans were applied for the purpose for which
those were raised, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilization were
gainfully invested in liquid investments payable on demand.

) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.




(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

For S.R.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provision of section, read
with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the company and hence reporting under clause 3(xi)
are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has complied
with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the preferential allotment or
private placement of shares during the year. According to the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that the amounts raised, have been used for the purposes for which the
funds were raised.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with the directors as referred to in
section 192 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has registered
as required, uhder section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Batlibol & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

4/

per Chirag

Partner

Membership Number: 115385

UDIN: 20115385AAAABP2581

Mumbai

July 3, 2020




T

Y. §%

Chartered Accountants

Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act')

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DMI Finance Private Limited (“the
Company") as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

‘ Companies Act, 2013.

\

|

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidahce Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements
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Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Chirag Jai
Partner
Membership Number: 115385

UDIN : 20115385AAAABP2581
Mumbai
July 3, 2020




DMI Finance Private Uimited
: Standalone Balance Sheet As at March 31, 2020
[All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise]

Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
ASSETS
Flnancial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 1,190.89 429.58
Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents 4 15.20 14.70
Receivables
(1) Trade Receivables S 35.40 8.21
{I1) Other Receivables
Loans 5 33,353.51 21,201.48
Investments 7 15,294.08 8,641.46
Other financial assets 8 519.67 671.13
Non- financal assets
Current tax assets 154.51 109.81
Deferred tax assets (net) 16 319.78 4543
Property, plant and equipment 9{a) 387.53 70.14
Intangible assets 9(b) 7.55 5.96
Cther non- financial assets 10 332.46 123.21
Assets heid for sale 11 189.85 533 70
TOTAL 51,800.43 32,854.81
1l N ITY.
LIABILITIES
Financial llabllities
Payables 12
{I} Trade Payablas
{1} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
{ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 195.24 94.73
enterprises
Debt Securities 13 22,797.57 5,782.28
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 14 3,091.28, 4,471.72
Other financial liabilities 15 333.11 251.41
Non financlal llabllitles
Current tax liabilities
Other Non-financial liabltilies 17 622,98 252.89
Equity
Equity share capital 18 5,592.94 5,487.41
Other equity 19 19,167 31 16,514.37
i TOTAL 51,800.43 32 85481
summary of significant ac Counting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batlibol & Assoclates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm Reglstration No. 101045W/E300004 DMI Finance Private Limlited
Chartered Accountants
. . . (
s B | \ -
Uf('. [Iw. A \ A
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Shiyaetfish Khatterjee Nuvraja CRanakyhs ‘.mgi
t. Managihg Directar) {}t. Managing Director)
DIN: 02623450 ‘ DIN: 02&)\1179
NEW YoRK., . USA : \
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= fatinder Thasin

(Chief Financial Officer)

Place:

Date: 0

Place:
Date:

M. No. 524788



DM Finance Private Limited
Standalone Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Particutars Notes For the year March | For the year March 31,
31, 2020 2018
Revenue from operations |
Interest Income 20 | 6,078.05 3,580.00
Fees and commission income 21 ‘5 52.03 7.10
Net gain on fair value changes 22 | 225.77 248 38
Total revenue from operations ] 6,355.85 3,835.48
Other income 23 0.02 4.98
Total Income 3 6,355 87 3,840.45
Expenses
Finance Costs 24 1,468.89 1,155,851
Fees and commission expense 25 B43.03 215.08
impairment on financial instruments 26 1,533.15 533.00
Employee Benefits Expense 27 43321 562.24
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 3fa) & 9(b) 76 40 1977
Other expenses I ] S S 597.50 285 98
Total Expenses 5.012.18 2,771.59 |
Profit/{loss) before tax 1,343.69 1,068.87
Tax Expense:
{1} Current Tax 16 548.07 | 31527
(2) Deferred Tax 16 (195.27)] 0.74
Profit/(loss] for the year 990.82 752.86 j
Other Comprehensive Income
8) items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{1} Re-measurement gains/(losses) on gratuity i (2.00} 0.39
Income tax effect i 050 (0.11)
b) items that will be reclassified to profit or loss ;
{i) Gain/{loss) on Fair Value Changes {85.37} {23 56}
Income tax effect 24.00 7.00
Other Comaﬁen:lve income _ net of Income tay B = S 172.87) (18.28)
Total Comprehensive income for the period PR | 918.02 736.58
Eamings per equity share® 23
8asic (Rs.) 1.78 1.60
Diluted (Rs.) 177 1.59
__Nominal value per share (Rs.) - 10 10
w— = - e R S e —t
|Summary of significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fnancial statements
As per our report of even date
For S,R. Batilbol & Associates LLP For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
ICAl Firm Registration No. 101043W/E300004 DMi Finance Private Limited
Chartered ﬁnnnts
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DM Finance Private Limited

Chartered Accountamie. P

per Chirag Jain
Partner
Membership No. 11

Place
Date:

DM Finance Private Limited

{Chia! Finanetsl Officer)

Standal Cash flow stat 1t for the Year ended March 31, 2020
. {All Amount In Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)
Naotes Year ended Year ended
) _March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A Cash flow from operating activities;
Net profit before tax as per statement of profit and toss 1,343.69 1,068.36
Adjustmants for
Depreciation and amortisation 76 40 1977
Interast Expense 1,468 89 1,135 51
interest Income {6,078.05) {3,580 00)
Net gain on fair value changes 1225 77} (248 87)
Profit on sale of investment in equity shares (4 98)
Employee stock option expense S o 2878
Operating profit before working capital changes (3,414.84} {1,560.43)
Changes in working capita! -
Increase/ (decrease) in financial and other assets {6,139 £9) {6,424 63)
Increase/ (decrease) in financis! and other lisbilities 18933 (534 82)
Increase/ (decrease) in non financial eassets 134.61 888 45
incresse{decrease) in non financiat lishilities 370 10 0.04
Total of changes In working capltai {5,445.05) (6,070.56}
Direct taxes paid (592 78} {425.25)
| Net casn Aow from / used in] operating sctivities (7] - T (9,452.67) T {8.056.64)
8 Cash flow from investing activities:
inflow {outflow) on account of ;
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment {including capits! work-in-
progressy/ intangible assets {396 44) (32 41)
Sale of Property, plent and equipment {including capital work-in-
progress) 108
Purchase of Mutual Fund Investments {31,661.52) (14,850.00)
Purchase of Investments {861.82) {2,073 00)
Sale of Mutua! Fund Investments 24,719 11 10,123 01
Sale of Investments 2,465.87 2,467 84
Netcash flaw from / {used In) Investing activities (B) {5,723.84) (8,384.56)
€ Cash flow from financing activitles:
tssue of equity shares {inciuding share premiumj 1,786.08 9,190.81
Proceeds from Non Convertible Debentures 21,303.00 6,050.00
Proceeds from Bank Borrowings $80.00 1,900 00
Repayment of Cash Credit {332.86) {42 83)
Repayment of Debt Securities (4,300.00) {2,230 00}
Repayment of Bank Borrowings {2,314 54) {1,437.53)
Interest paid (1.177.861 i1 030 a1l
Net Cash flow from / [used in) financing activities {C} 15,943.82 12,409.82
Net increase/{decrease} In cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 761.31 11.38)
Cash and cash equivslents as at the beginning of the year 429 58 44096
Cash and cash eg i at the end of the vear a 1.190.89 429.58
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 012 0.07
Balance with banks
In current sccounts 1,180 77 429 51
Total cash snd cash equivalents 4 1,160.89 429.58
Summary of siznilieant acrnunting palicies 3
Notes:-
Cash flow statement has been prepared undsr indirect methad ss set out in the IND AS 7 “Cash Flow Statement”
Previous yeer figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wheraver applicable.
For disclosure of investing and financing activities that do nat require the use of cash and cash aquivalents, refer note 35.
The eccompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per ourt repart of even date
Far 5.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of g
ICAl Firm Ragistration No. 101043W/E300004 t
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DM Finance Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year ended March 31, 2020
{All Amount In Rs. In milllons, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

8. Equity Share Capita!

Particulars ) No. of Shares  [Amount

Balance as on Agril 1 2019 52,09,57,807 5,209.58 |
Additions:

Lguity Share Capital issyed duting the year 752,79 865 18279
Shates issued persuant to conversion of 2,00,56,808 200 57

rompulsonly convertible preference shares{CCPSs)

{Balance as on March 33 2020 £1,52,94,566 5,592.94
b, Other Equity
. - Feserves and surplus
particul ¢ mqu‘::::t of £quity Component |Reguiatory Share Based  |Securitles Capital P Total
RECHRS 9 pCCD of CCPS Raserve u/s 45-/Payments Premium Redemption P
iCofRBIAct  [Reserves Reserve Reserve B
Balance az.on March 31 2019 - : 73131 25.04 12,905.7§ 8121 2,768.08 16,514.37
{Prafit for the year (A) = . 990 89 990,39
|Other Comprehensive Income for the year 8} 172 87} {72.87)
Total Comprehensive income for tha year {A+B) 918.02 918.02
Transfer to special teseive 20153 - {201 53) .
Share Bazed Paymants ] 3854 - 38.54
| Premium on ronversion of CCPSs 77.28 77.26
Premium on istue pf equity shares - 1,564.75 31,5645
Deferred tax hability reversed an CCOs/CEPSs 54.37 54,37
LBalance as on March 31 2020 . 532.84 66.58 14,547.77 81.21 3,538.91 18.167.31
'The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For $.R. Batiibol & Associates LLP For and on bshalf of tha Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm Registration No., 103049W/E300004 DMI Finance Private Umited
Chartered Accountants
~— ~
- A ) 4 5
: A N
A ry \ »
per Chirag Jain Yuurdia (nana\q[f{lgu
Partner {1t/ Managing Director)
Membership No\t}s38s oin: 02623440 ow-/azscuﬁ
New Yik, \Uigm\/,,
minder Bhlsln Salnh\\f‘ Nw.\
(Chlef Financial Officer) (Comghny
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Place: -

Date:




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1.

(a)

(b)

Corporate information

DMI Finance Private Limited (the “Company”) is a Company domiciled in India as a Private Limited Company. The
Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) as a non-deposit accepting non-banking financial
company or NBFC-ND under the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

The Company is engaged in the business of providing loans to corporate and unsecured personal loans.
Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance in preparation of financial statements

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards {Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time
to time).

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI} instruments, other financial assets held for trading and financial assets and liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), all of which have been measured at fair value.

Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally
reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when Ind AS specifically permits the same
or it has an unconditionally legally enforceable rights to offset the recognized amounts without being contingent on
future events. Similarly, the Company offsets the income and expenses and reports the same on a net basis when
permitted by Ind AS specifically.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of Standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
and accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which estimates are revised and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in the outcome requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future
periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is
included in the following notes:

i) Impairment loss on financial assets
Judgment is required by management in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining an impairment allowance for loans and advances. In estimating these cash flows, the Company makes
judgments about the borrower’s financial situation. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of
factors such as credit quality, level of arrears etc. and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the
impairment allowance. Refer note 6.1 for further details of the increased uncertainty relating to the estimation of
impairment of loan portfolio due to the impact of the pandemic as at Mach 31, 2020.

ii) Business Model Assumption

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model tests.
The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant
evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that
affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to
their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective
of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether
the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification
of those assets.

iii) Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the
gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting date.

~—

Share Based Payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the
most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend
yield and making assumptions about them.

iv

v) Falr value measurement

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction in the principle (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current
market conditions (i.e. the exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance
sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
technigues including the Discounted Cash Flow (“DCF”) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

{b) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent comprises cash in hand, demand deposits and time deposits with original maturity of less
than three months held with bank, debit balance in cash credit account.

() Recognition of income and expense

i) Interest income
The Company earns revenue primarily from giving loans. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Interest revenue is recognized using the effective interest method (EIR). The effective interest method calculates the
amortized cost of a financial instrument and allocates the interest income. The effective interest rate is the rate that
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The calculation takes into
account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future
credit losses.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other
than credit-impaired assets. When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage
3’, the Company calculates the interest to the extant recoverable. If the financial assets cures and is ho longer credit-
impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income.

i) Interest expense
Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the financial liability
and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions
payable to arrangers and other expenses, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue
of a financial liability.

iii) Other charges and other interest
/.::.-_;_e{‘ Overdue charges including penal interest is recognized on realization basis.
Ages
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iv) Dividend income

)

ii)

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally
when shareholders approve the dividend.

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for consideration.

Where the Company is lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset Is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment, Refer to the accounting policies in
Section m (ii) Impairment of non-financial assets.

Lease Liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is hot readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the [ease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments).

iii) Short Term Lease

)

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised as and when due.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and Intangible assets

PPE

PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase
price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebate are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
assets is derecognized.

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure
is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.
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Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.

(f) Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation

Depreciation on PPE is calculated on a written down value (WDV) basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful
lives of the assets, prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 which also represents the estimate of
the useful life of the assets by the management.

PPE costing upto Rs.5,000 individually are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.,

The company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its fixed assets.

Useful lives estimated by Rate of Depreciation
the management (years)

Furniture and fixtures 10 25.89%
Computers 3 63.16%
Vehicles 8 31.23%
Office equipment 5 45.07%

Leasehold improvements and allied office equipment’s are amortized on a straight-line basis over useful life
estimated by management.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of PPE are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Amortization

Intangible assets are amortized on a WDV basis a period of five years from date when the assets are available for use.
The amortization period and the amortization method for intangible assets are reviewed at the end of each financial
year.

(g) Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the
best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.

Contingent liability is disclosed for (1) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly
within the control of the Company or (2) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
cannot be made,

Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements.

(h) Retirement and other employee benefits
Post-employment benefits are classified as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Under a defined
contribution plan, the Company’s only obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits. The related actuarial and
investment risks fall on the employee. The expenditure for defined contribution plans is recognized as expense during
the period when the employee provides service. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation to
provide agreed benefits to the employees. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the Company. The




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The Company operates following employee benefit plans:

i) Employee Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as expenditure when an employee renders the related service.

ii) Gratuity

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment to eligible
employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment
with the Company. The Company’s obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is
provided for based on actuarial valuation.

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these
liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements
are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

iii) Leaves

Entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they accrue to the employees. Leave entitlements can be availed
while in service of employment subject to restriction on the maximum number of accumulations. The Company
determines the liability for such accumulated leave entitlements on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an
independent actuary at the Year end.

(i) Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities in accordance with Income tax Act, 1961, Income Computation and Disclosure Standards and
other applicable tax laws, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted at the
reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which during the specific period gives future
economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability is considered as an asset if there is
convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as ah asset in the
balance sheet when it is highly probable that future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the company.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred-tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

i) Earning per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per share. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of
an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share
during the reporting year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the periad are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(k) Share based payments

Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a straight line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest,
with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve,

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

(1 Financial instruments

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date,
i.e,, the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Loans and advances
to customers are recognised when funds are disbursed to the customers. The classification of financial instruments
at initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the management’s intention when acquiring
them. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classification and Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instruments/Loan portfolio at amortized cost
* Debtinstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

N -
N\ S
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e Equity Instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

Debt instruments/Loan portfolio at amortised costs

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

e The assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

¢ Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

Business model: The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows.
That is, where the Company’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets, the same is
measured at amortized cost or where the Company’s objective is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash
flows arising from the sale of assets, the same is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI). If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets
are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured at FVTPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows (i.e. measured at amortized cost),
the Company assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest (the ‘SPPI test’). In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are
consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money,
credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where
the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement,
the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss. The amortized cost, as
mentioned above, is computed using the effective interest rate method.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR} method less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
interestincome in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

The measurement of credit impairment is based on the three-stage expected credit loss model described in Note:
Impairment of financial assets (refer note 3 (m)).

Debt Instruments at FVOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOC! if both of the following criteria are met:

The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and fair value changes
relating to market movements selling the financial assets, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCl). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the
equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

Equity Investments and Mutual funds

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
are classified as held at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on
an instrument-by- instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
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If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OC| to Statement of profit
and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized cost. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair
value and in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The
company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using effective interest method.
Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The company doesn’t reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never
reclassified.

De-recognition of financial asset and financial liability

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is de-
recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Company also de-
recognises the financial asset if it has transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

- It has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
or

= Itretains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or
more entities (the 'eventual recipients'), when all of the following three conditions are met:

- The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected equivalent
amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent
plus accrued interest at market rates.

- The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients.

- The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without material delay.

In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents
including interest earned, during the period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the
eventual recipients. A transfer only qualifies for de-recognition if either:

- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
or

- The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset
in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing
additional restrictions on the transfer. When the Company has neither transferred nor retained hstantially all the
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risks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the
Company's continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between: (a) the carrying amount (measured at
the date of derecognition) and (b) the consideration received {including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) is recognised in the statement of profit or loss account.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-
recognition of the original liability and the re-cognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(m) Impairment of financial assets
i) Overview of principles for measuring expected credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company is required to measure expected credit losses on its financial instruments
designated at amortized cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. Accordingly, the Company is
required to determine lifetime losses on financial instruments where credit risk has increased significantly since its
origination. For other instruments, the Company is required to recognize credit losses over next 12 month period.
The Company has an option to determine such losses on individual basis or collectively depending upon the nature
of underlying portfolio. The Company has a process to assess credit risk of all exposures at each year end as follows:

Stage |

These represent exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or
that has low credit risk at the reporting date. The Company has assessed that all standard exposures (i.e. exposures
with no overdues) and exposure upto 30 day overdues fall under this category. In accordance with Ind AS 109, the
Company measures ECL on such assets over next 12 months.

Stage Il

Financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are classified under
this stage. Based on empirical evidence, significant increase in credit risk is withessed after the overdues on an
exposure exceed for a period more than 30 days. Accordingly, the Company classifies all exposures with overdues
exceeding 30 days at each reporting date under this Stage. The Company measures lifetime ECL on stage Il loans,

Stage Ill

All exposures having overdue balances for a period exceeding 90 days are considered to be defaults and are classified
under this stage. Accordingly, the Company measures lifetime losses on such exposure. Interest revenue on such
contracts is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost (net of impairment allowance)
instead of the gross carrying amount. The method is similar to Stage |l assets, with the probability of default set at
100%.

When estimating ECL on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Company applies the same principles for
assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Methodology for calculating ECL
The mechanics of the ECL calculation involve the use of following key elements:

Probability of default (PD) - The probability of default is an-estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon
{12-month or lifetime, depending upon the stage of the asset). PD estimation is done based on historical internal data
available with the Company.

Exposure at default (EAD) ~ It represents an estimate of the exposure of the Company at a future date after considering
repayments by the counterparty before the default event occurs. The outstanding balance as at reporting date is
considered as EAS by the Company. Considering the PD determined above factors in amount at default, there is no
separate requirement to estimate EAD.
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ii)

Loss given default (LGD) — It represents an estimate of the loss expected to be incurred when the event of default
occurs. The Company uses historical loss data/external agency LGD for identified pools for the purpose of calculating
LGD.

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the
economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there is any relationship between
key economic trends like GDP, Unemployment rates, Benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc.
with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of
PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays are embedded
in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably.

Definition of default and cure

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage Ill {credit-impaired) for ECL
caleulations typically when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on contractual payments. The Company may
also classify a loan in Stage Ill if there is significant deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower or an
assessment that adverse market conditions may have a disproportionately detrimental effect on the loan
repayment. Thus, as a part of the qualitative assessment of whether an instrument is in default, the Company also
considers a variety of instances that may indicate delay in or non-repayment of the loan. When such events occur,
the Company carefully considers whether the event should resultin treating the borrower as defaulted and therefore
assessed as Stage |Il for ECL calculations or whether Stage Il is appropriate.

Classification of accounts into Stage Il is done when there is a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, typically when contractual repayments are more than 30 days past due.

It is the Company’s policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage Ill or
Stage |l when none of the default criteria which resulted in their downgrade are present.

Collateral repossessed

The Company’s policy is to sell repossessed assets. Non-financial assets repossessed are transferred to asset held for
sale at fair value less cost to sell or principal outstanding whichever is less at repossession date.

Write-offs

Financial-assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped pursuing the
recovery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated
as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries
are credited to profit and loss account.

Non-financial asset

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based
on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using various valuation
techniques,
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(o)

(p)

The Company’s accounting policies require, measurement of certain financial / non-financial assets and liabilities at
fair values (either on a recurring or non-recurring basis). Also, the fair values of financial instruments measured at
amortized cost are required to be disclosed in the said financial statements.

The Company is required to classify the fair valuation method of the financial / non-financial assets and liabilities,
either measured or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements, using a three level fair-value-hierarchy (which
reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurement).

Accordingly, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy described as follows:

e Llevel 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The
Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on
the balance sheet date.

¢ Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived
from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

* Level 3 financial instruments - include one or more unobservable input where there is little market activity for
the asset/liability at the measurement date that is significant to the measurement as a whole.

Dividend

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorised
and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability
on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration
by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Foreign Currency Translation
Foreign currency transactions and balances

Initial recognition:
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion:

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms
of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

Exchange differences:

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, or on reporting such monetary items of Company
at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial
statements, are recoghized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.
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DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.12 0.07
Balance with Banks
- Cash Credit 225.30 -
- In Current Accounts 965.47 429.51
1,190.89 429.58
Bank balances other than above
Deposit with original maturity of more than 12 months - -
Deposit with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months* 15.20 14.70
15.20 14.70
Total 1,206.09 444.28

* Deposits being lien marked against corporate credit cards and bank guarantee.

For the purpose of statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent comprise the following:

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balance with Banks

- Cash Credit

- In Current Accounts
Total

Trade Receivables

0.12 0.07
225.30 -
965.47 429.51

1,190.89 429.58

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Unsecured considered good
Total

35.40

8.21

35.40

8.21
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Investments
At fair Value
Through other
Through Profl
Particulars Amortised Cost rough Profit comprehensive Subtotal Others* Total
and Loss E
income
As at March 31, 2020
Mutual Fund Investments - 11,966.50 - 11,966.50 - 11,966.50
In 1ts in Subsldiarles / Assoclate equity
DMI Capital Private Limited - CCPS 303.30 303.30 - 303.30
DMI Management Services Private Limited- Equity Shares . . 0,96 0.96
DMI Alternatives Private Limited - - 425 4,25
DMI Capltal Private Limited - Equlty Shares - - 0.99 0.99
Investment In Other Equlty Shares
DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited 316 3.16 3.16
DMI Housing Finance Private Limited - Equity Shares - - - -
McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited - Equity Shares - 7.20 - 7.20 - 7.20
Flash Electronles Private Limited - Equlty Shares - 250.00 250.00 250.00
Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Company - Equity Shares . 226.20 226.20 226.20
Alchemist XV Trust (Investment) - 195.00 - 195.00 - 195.00
DMI AIF Special Opportunities Scheme . 10.80 10.80 - 10.80
Compulsory Convertible Debentures(CCDs) - 77317 773.17 - 773.17
CredIt Substitutes 1,333.92 419,58 1,753.50 = 1,753.50
Total (A) 1,333.92 12,472,00 1,682,91 15,488.83 6.20 15,495.03
Investments outside India - . - E . -
investments Ih India 1,333.92 12,472.00 1,682.91 15,488.83 6.20 15,4385.03
Total (B) 1,333.92 12,472.00 1,682.91 15,488.83 6.20 15,495.03
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss (C }** 106.40 94,55 200.95 - 200,95
Total Net D = {A) -(C) 1,227.52 12,472.00 1,588.36 15,287.88 65,20 15,294,08
* At cost
** Refer Note 6.1 for movement of ECL and gross carrying amount of credit substitutes and CCDs
At fair Value
Through other
Th Profi
Partlculars Amortised Cost :::‘:['os:o t comprehensive Subtotal Others* Total
income
As at March 31, 2019
Mutual Fund Investments 4,806.67 4,806.67 - 4,806.67
) In Subsidlarles / Associate equity
DMiI Capital Private Limited - CCPS 293.12 - 293.12 - 293.12
DMI Management Services Private Limited- Equity Shares - . - 096 0.6
DMI Alternatives Private Limited = ~ = - 2,70 2.70
DMI Capital Private Limited - Equity Shares - 099 0.99
Investment In Other Equity Shares
DMt Consumer Credit Private Limited - = 3.00 3.00 3.00
DMI Housing Finance Private Limited - Equity Shares - 264.87 264.87 264.87
McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited - Equity Shares 198.40 - 198.40 198.40
Flash Electronics Private Limited - Equity Shares - 250.00 250.00 250,00
Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Company - Equity Shares - 316.68 316.68 316.68
Alchemist XV Trust (Investment) - 196.75 - 196.75 196.75
DMI AIF Special Opportunities Scheme - 10.48 10.48 - 10.48
Compulsory Convertible Debentures{CCDs) - 77293 772.93 772.93
Credit Substitutes 1,708.81 - 895,85 2,604.66 - 2,604.66
Total (A) 1,708.81 5,494.94 2,513,981 9,717.56 4.65 9,722.21
Investments outside India - - - . - -
Investments in India 1,708.81 5,494.94 2,513.81 9,717.56 4.65 9,722.21
Total (B) 1,708.81 5,494.94 2,513.81 98,717.56 4.65 9,722.21
Total (A) to tally with (B) 1,708.81 5,494.94 2,513.81 9,717.56 4.65 g9,722.21
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss (C )** 57.92 - 22,83 80.75 - 80.75
Total Net D = {A) -(C) 1,650,689 5,494,894 2,490.98 9,636.81 4.65 9,641.46

* At cost

** Refer Note 6.1 for movement of ECL and gross carrying amount of credit substitutes and CCDs




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All Amount in Rs. In milllons, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Notes:

(i} Credit substitutes are quoted non-convertible debentures and are part of financing activities. It has been disclosed in investments as per the disclosure requirement under the

Companies Act, 2013.

(i) Terms attached to compulsorlly convertible preference shares Issued by DMI Capltal Private Limited

(i)

The holders of the CCPS shall be entitled to receive dividends on a pari passu basis as and when the dividends are declared on the Equity Shares.

The CCPS shall not carry any voting rights until conversion into Equity Shares, except in accordance with applicable laws,

In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up {voluntary or otherwise), CCPS shall immediately be converted into Equity Shares at the Conversion Price (as defined
hereunder) on the date of conversion.

Upon such converslon, the Equity Shares Issued against converslon of CCPS shall rank pari passu with all other Equity Shares in all respects, including far purposes of the

distribution of assets of the Company
CCPS shall compulsorily convert into Equlty Shares at the end of 10 years from the date of issue However, at any time after the date of issuance of CCPS, the registered holder of

such CCPS can also choose to convert the CCPS.

CCPS shall be converted Into Equity Shares at the fair market value of Equity Shares as determined by the Board of Directors of the Investee Company on the date of conversion
{“Conversion Price”). However, such conversion cannot be undertaken below the value per share arrived at based on discounted cash flow method prevailing on the date of issue
of CCPS,

During the year the Company has sold it entire equity stake in DM! Housing Finance to various existing investors and its holding compay

Other financlal assets (at amortized cost)

As at
A h 31,
Partlculars March 31, s at March 31,
2019
2020
Security Deposit 21,04 10,56
Others 498.63 660.57

Total 519.67 671.13




DMI Finance Private Limted
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2020
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

9(a) Property, plant and equipment

Furr.uture and Computer Vehlcles 9”‘“ Lease hold Right-of-use Asset Total
fixtures equipment improw
At March 31, 2018 1.51 12.33 6.42 10.65 56.91 - 87.82
Purchase 0.08 7.07 - 4.41 15.42 = 26,98
Dispasals - - - - - - =
At March 31, 2019 1.59 19.40 6.42 15.06 72.33 - 114.80
Re-Classification Adjustment (0.62) {0.33) - 0.65 - - (0.30)
Purchase 0.50 9.72 0.00 1568 6891 293.91 388.72
Disposals - - {1.06) - - - {1.06}
At March 31, 2020 1.47 28.79 5.36 31.39 141,24 293,91 502.16
Depreciation
At March 31, 2018 0.46 7.27 3.01 5.48 9.83 - 26.05
Charge for the year 0.13 6.44 107 3.26 7.7 - 18.61
Disposals . - - - - - -
At March 31, 2019 0.59 13.71 4.08 8.74 17.54 - 44.66
Re-Classification Adjustment (0.03) (1.33) - 0.06 - - (1.30)
Charge for the year 0.13 7.40 0.71 6.39 12.40 4524 72.27
Dispasals - - (1.00) - - - (1.00)
At March 31, 2020 0.69 19.78 3.79 15.19 29.94 45.24 114.63
Net Block
At March 31, 2019 0.99 5.70 2.34 6.32 54.79 - 70.14
At March 31, 2020 0.78 9.01 1.57 16.20 111.30 248.67 387.53
9(b) Intangible assets
Software Total

Gross black
At March 31, 2018 3.21 3.21
Capitalised during the year - -
Purchase 5.42 5.42
At March 31, 2019 8.63 8.63
Re-Classification Adjustment 0.30 0.30
Capitalised during the year - -
Purchase 6.73 6.73
At March 31, 2020 15.66 15.66
Amortization
At March 31, 2018 1.52 1.52
Charge for the year 116 1.16
At March 31, 2019 2.68 2.68

Re-Classification Adjustment 1.30 1.30
Charge for the year 4.13 4.13
At March 31, 2020 8.11 8.11
Net block
At March 31, 2019 (1.38) (1.38)

At March 31, 2020 7.55 7.55




DMI Finance Private Limted
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

10 Other non- financial assets

11

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Capital Advance 9.14 0.00
Prepaid Expenses 45.40 28.45
Balances with statutory / government authorities 277.33 75.95
Deferred Rent Expenses 0.10 0.10
Other Non Financial Assets 0.49 18.71

Total 332.46 123.21

Assets held for sale

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Assets under settlement 189.85 533.70

These assets represent assets acquired from the Company’s borrowers as a part of company’s risk management strategy. In
these cases, the company had entered into settlement agreement as a prudent measure by the management wherein the
borrower was approached and there was a mutual consensus between the Company and Borrower to transfer the asset in
the name of the company towards settlement of the loan amount. The Company holds total assets under settlement to Rs.
189.85 millions as on 31st March 2020 { Previous year Rs. 533,70 millions ). During the year the Company has liquidated the
assets amounting to Rs 180 millions. Further, with respect to assets amounting to Rs. 442.94 Millions, it entered into an
arrangement under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code on July 13, 2018 whereby the Company will recover a total amount of
Rs. 263.98 Millions over a period of five years towards the claim Rs. 163.85 Millions towards asset under settlement and Rs.
279.09 millions of remaining original loans due from the borrower. The company has recorded the recoverable amount as a
new loan at its net present value i.e. Rs 204.56 Millions which is classified under Stage 1 and recorded a loss for the balance

amount.




DMI Finance Private Limted
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

12 Payables

13

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Trade Payables
Total outsanding dues of Micro Enterprises - -
and Small Enterprises

Total outsanding dues of Creditors other than
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 195.24 94.73

Total 195.24 94.73

There are no amounts that need to be disclosed in accordance with the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2006 (the ‘MSMED’) pertaining to micro or small enterprises. For the Year ended March 31, 2020, no supplier has
intimated the Company about its status as micro or small enterprises or its registration with the appropriate authority under
MSMED.,

Debt Securities

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Non Convertible Debentures (Refer Note 13.1) 20,547.57 5,782.28
Optionally Convertible Debentures 2,250.00 -
Total gross (A) 22,797.57 5,782.28
Secured* 4,744.57 5,782.28
Unsecured 18,053.00 -
Total 22,797.57 5,782.28
Debt securities in India 22,797.57 5,782.28
Debt securities outside India - -
Total (B) to tally with (A) 22,797.57 5,782.28

*Secured against Exclusive floating charge by way of hypothecation of loans and receivables of the Company.
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DMI Finance Private Limted
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)
14  Borrowings

As at March As at March
At amortised cost

31, 2020 31, 2019
Secured*
Term loans
From Banks 2,824.83 4,138.86
Cash Credit - 332.86
Lease Liability IND AS 116 266.45 2
Total gross (A) 3,091.28 4,471.72
Borrowings in India 3,091.28 4,471.72
Borrowings outside India -
Total (B) to tally with (A) 3,091.28 4,471.72

*Secured against Exclusive floating charge by way of hypothecation of loans and receivables of the Company.

Details of the Term Loans from Banks are as follows:

Outstanding as | Outstanding as
Repayment .
Bank Name Details Rate of Interest| Security Cover | on 31st March | on 31st March
2020 2019

State Bank of India-If 14 quarterly . 142.51
installments =>9%<12% 133%

Karur Vysya Bank 14 quarterly _ . . 64.16
installments =>9%<12% 133%

HDFC Bank 16 quarterly 131.04 205.72
installments =>9%<12% 133%

HDFC Bank 12 monthly 186.70 =
installments =>9%<12% 133%

SIDBI-II 14 quarterly - 188.35
installments =>0%<12% 133%

Kotak Mahindra Bank 12 quarterly —59%<12% 49.96 99.84
installments ToIARLEs 133%

Union Bank of India 14 quarterly 248.35 389.58
installments =>9%<12% 133%

Union Bank of India 14 quarterly 354.04 494.74
installments =>9%<12% 133%

IFCl 14 quarterly E 711.21
installments =>9%<12% 133%

AU Small Finance Bank 36 monthly 162.22 311.67
installments =>9%<12% 110%

AU Small Finance Bank 36 monthly ot 191.21 -
installments =>9%<12% 110%

South Indian Bank 14 quarterly . 170.84 255.87
installments =>9%<12% 133%

Lakshmi Vilas Bank-Ill 12 quarterly 166.02 297.85
installments =>9%<12% 133%

Bank of Baroda-| 16 quarterly 737.18 977.35
installments =>9%<12% 133%

Hinduja Leyland Finance 36 monthly _ 427.27
installments =>9%<12% 110%

Total 4,138.85




DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

15 Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
Interest accrued but not due
Interest Payable on CCD - 1.79
Interest Payable on Debt Securities 215.41 76.53
Interest Payable on Bank Borrowings 6.34 6.45
Other financial liabities 111.36 166.64
333.11 251.41
16 Tax Expenses
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2020 are :
Year ended Year ended

Profit or loss section

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge 548.07 315.27
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (195.27) 0.74
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit
or loss 352.80 316.01
OCl section
Particul Year ended Year ended

articulars March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
Unrealised (gain)/loss on FVTOCI debt securities 6.37
Unrealised (gain)/loss on FVTOCI equity securities 24,00 0.63
Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit
plans 0.50 (0.11)
Income tax charged to OCI 24.50 6.89
Reconciliation between effective tax rate and statutory tax rate

. Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
Profit before tax (including Other Comprehensive Income) 1,246.32 1,069.36
At corporate tax rate of 25.17% (Previous year 29.12%) 313.70 311.40
Expenditure disallowed 34,55 409.25
Income not subject to tax (53.13) (73.47)
Deductions 25.73 (411.83)
Short term capital gain 1.28 2.24
Impact due to revaluation of deferred tax due to change in
Income tax rate* 6.16 71.54
Tax expense (effective tax rate of 26.34%, Previous year 28.91%) 328.30 309.12

* Company opted for reduced corporate tax rate of 25.17% as per recently inserted section 115BAA of the Inco

1961 during the year ended 31 March 2020.

P 7N
\Sacatss




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Deferred Tax liabilities / (assets)

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Deferred tax liability

Interest Component on CCD and CCPS

Fair value of Financial Instruments

Difference in income recognition on unrealized gain on
mutual fund investments

Gross deferred tax liability

Deferred tax asset

Provision for gratuity and Leave availment
Difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/amortization charged for the financial
reporting

Rent Equilization Reserves

ECL

Carry forward of Interest disallowed u.s 948

Gross deferred tax asset

Net Deferred Tax (Liability)/ Asset

17 Other Non-financial Liabitilies

- (54.58)
(75.07) (118.94)
(16.75) (15.25)
(91.82) (188.77)

9.55 5.52
5.91 414
3.96 5
366.51 194.86
25.67 29.68
411.60 234.20
319.78 45.43

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
Employee Benefit Expenses Payable 86.62 48.96
Statutory Dues Payable 268.70 66.91
Provision for Expenses 57.28 22,15
Others* 210.38 114.87
Total 622.98 252.89

* Others include Processing Fee refundable to channel partners, advance received from borrowers and amount collected

from borrowers as Debt service reserve account (DSRA).
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DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

18 Equity share capital

Details of authorized, issued, subscribed and pald up share capital

As at March 31, As at March

2020 31, 2019
Authorized share Capital
965,000,000 {P.Y. 965,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 9,650.00 9,650.00
35,000,000 (P.Y. 35,000,000) Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 350.00 350.00

10,000.00  10,000.00

Equity Share Capital

lssued & Subscribed:

Fully Called-up and Paid-up
558,979,166 (P.Y. 520,957,897) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,589.79 5,209.58

Sub Total (A) 5,585.79 5,209.58

Partly Called-up and Paid-up
57,315,400 (P.Y. Nil) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each * 3.15 -

Sub Total (A) 3.15

Preference Share Capital

Issued & Subscribed:
Fully Called-up and Paid-up

Nil B Series (P.Y. 15,481,134) compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 sach - 154.81
Nil C Series (P.Y. 6,749,135) compulsorily canvertible preference sharas of Rs, 10 each - 67.49
Nil D Series (P.Y. 247,468) compulsorily convertible praference shares of Rs, 10 each - 247
Nil E Series (P.Y. 224,971} compulsorily convertible preferance shares of Rs. 10 each . 2.25
Nil F Series (P.Y. 899,885) compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each - 9.00
Nil G Series {P.Y. 4,180,602) compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each - 41.81
Sub Total (B) - 277.83
Total {A+B) 5,592.94 5,487.41

! Durlng the year, 2,77,83,195 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS”} of face value of Rs. 10/- each were converted into 2,00,56,804 Ordinary Equity shares of
face value of Rs, 10/-each. The detail is as given below:

18.1 Details for Conversion of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares{CCPSs) during the year

Particulars No. of Number of Premium*  |Share
convertible equlty Capital
CCPSs shares

issued upon

conversion
C Series compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 6.75 5.45 13.00 54.49
D Series compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 0.25 0.20 0.49 1.9%
E Serles compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 0.22 0.18 0.44 1.81
F Series compulsarlly convertilile preference shares of Rs. 10 each 0.90 0.73 1.70 7.30
B Series complilsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 15.48 9.80 56.85 97.96
G Series compulsarily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 2.09 1.85 2.39 18.51
G Series compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 2.09 1.85 2.39 18.51
Total 27.78 20.06 77.26 200.57

*Total premium is Rs. 218.09 Millions out of which Rs. 140.83 millions is already received in cash in previous years and Rs.77.26 Millions pertains to conversian.




DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

18.2 The reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year.

18,

w

18.4

| AsatMarch31,2020 | As at March 31, 2019 |

Name of the sharehalder I No. of shares Amount |I No. of shares Amount |

Equity Share at the beginning of year 52,09,57,897 5,209.58 32,44,18,138 3,244.18
Add: Equity Share Allotted during year

Shares issued during the year 7,52,79,865 182.79 9,62,48,878 962.49
Shares issued pursuant to conversion of compulsorily convertible preference shares 2,00,56,804 200.57

Shares issued pursuant to conversion of compulsorily convertible debendtures - - 10,02,90,881 1,002.91
Equlty share at the end of year 61,62,94,566 5,592.94 52,09,57,897 5,209.58

Shares held by holding Company

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding

Name of the shareholder

DMI Limited 43,89,39,922 71.22%  41,85,24,894 80.34%

Total 43,89,39,922 71.22%  41,85,24,894 80.34%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding

Name of the shareholder

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

DMI Limlted 43,89,39,922 71.22%  41,85,24,894 80.34%
NIS Ganesha $.A. 6,47,35,441 10.50%  6,25,34,447 12.00%
Kavz! 5,73,15,400 9.30% - 2

Total 56,0,90,763 91.03%  48,10,59,341 92.34%

t During the year, Equity shares issued on partly-paid up basis where subscription amount being received on allotment is Rs. 32.11 Millions {Face Value Rs.10/-per share, Paid up
value- Rs. 0,57 per share inclusive of premium of Rs.0.51 per share) calculated proportionately, balance of Rs. 5,806.61 Millions {i.e. Face value and Share premium) is yet to be
received.

Compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

Windy Investments Private Limited (B Series) - - 1,54,81,134 55.72%
Windy Investments Private Limited (G Series) = - 41,80,602 15.05%
Anuj Malhotra (C Series) - - 67,49,135 24.29%
Total - - 2,64,10,871 95.06%

Note: As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the
above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.




DM Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

19 Other equity

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Share Premium Account? 14,547.77 12,905.76
Capital Redemption Reserve 81.21 81.21
Regulatory Reserve u/s 45-IC of RBI Act 932.84 731.31
Share Options Outstanding Account 66.58 28.04
Retained earnings 3,538.91 2,768.05
Total 19,167.31 16,514.37

1. It represents reserves created on account of share options granted by the company to its employees.

2. Securities Premium Account is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The balance can be utilized only
for limited purposes such as issuance of Bonus Shares in accordance with provisions of Companies Act 2013
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DM Fnance Private Limited
Notes to the dal Financial § for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All Amount in Rs, In mlillons, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

20

21

22

interest Income

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2020

Year ended March 31, 2019

On financial assets measured
at Amartlsed cost

On financial assets
measured at fair

On financial assets
measured at Amortised

On financial assets
measurad at falr valug

walue through OC1 cost through OCl

Interest on Loans 5,909.51 162 05 3,211.73 356,40
Interest income on loan to associates’ ' - 11.20 =
Interest on Margin Money Deposits 6.49 - 0.67

5.916.00 162 05 327360 356.40

1. Interest Income on loan to associates includes Interest on loan given to DMI Housing Finance Private Limited and DMI Alternatives Private Limited glven in FY 2019-20 NIL {FY 2018-19 Rs.11.,2 millions)

Fees and commission Income

Particulars Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2020 2019

Card Reload Fee 45.28 5.88

Other Income 6.75 1.22

52.03 7.10

Net gain/(loss) on falr value changes

Partlculars Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2020 2019
Net gainf(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through proflt and loss
Investments 225.77 248.38
Total Net galn/{loss) on fair value changes 225.77 248.38
Analysls of falr value changes
Realised 202.87 9834
Unreallsed 22,80 150.53
Total Net gain/{loss} on falr value changes 225,77 24B.87
23 Other Income
Particulars Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2020 2019
Misc tncome 0.0 4.98
Total 0.02 4.98
24  Finance Costs
Particulars Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2020 2019
Interast
on compulsory convertible debentures - 133.39
on non convertible debentures 952,03 539.13
on bank term loan 396,28 389.61
on bank cash credit 10.42 26.95
on CCPS debt 25.29
on delayed deposit of statutory dues 0.20 034
Fees on borrowlings
- On Term Loans 24.81 19.46
- On Debt Securities 2501 746
Bank charges 30.19 12.39
Financial Cost on lease liabllity 20.86 -
Other Interest Expense 9.09 1.49
Total 1,468.89 1,155.51

25 Fees and commission expense
Particulars Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2020 2019
Selling Partner Commizsinn B43.03 215.09
843.03 215.09
26 Impalrment on financlal Instruments
Year ended March 31, 2020 Year ended March 31, 2019
On financlal I‘::t:{:::::
instruments measured On financlal On financlal
Partlculars measured at falr
at fair value through  Instruments measured Total Instruments measured Total
value through Other
Other Comprehenslve at Amaortised cost at Amortlsed cost
Comprehenslve
Income
Income
Loans 1.65 779.72 78137 1.1s 325.73 326.88
Investments 7172 48.48 12020 (14.26) (35.23) (49.49)
Write offs E 631.58 631.58 - 25561 25561
Total 73.37 1,459.78 1,533.15 [13.11) 546,11 533.00
E= e e e
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29

BMI Finance Private Limlted

Notes to the dalone Financlal

for the year ended March 31, 2020

(All Amount In Rs, In mlllions, except for share data unless stated otherwlse)

Employee Benefits Expenses -
Partlculars Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2020 2019
Salarizs and wages 413489 509.37
Contribution to provident and other funds 2414 13.88
Share Based Payments to employees 40.90 28.78
Staff welfare expenses 14.28 10.21
Total 493,21 562.24
Other expenses

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,

2020 2019

Advertlsement Expenses 13.30 9.40
Legal and professional fees 163.47 58.44
Travelling & conveyance expenses 2857 25.11
Audit fee” 378 3.10
IT Expenses 8777 43.03
Rates and taxes 246 17.44
Rent 2.04 18.79
GST Written off 198.89 61.03
Communication Expenses 1.8t 3.01
Printing & Stationery 138 1.49
Independent Directors Fee 0.16 0.58
Corporate Social Responsibility 2 2130 19.70
Repair and Maintenance 9.77 14.07
Insurance Expense 004 1.05
Securlty expense 4,15 5.03
Credlt Evaluatlon Fee 30,71 4.24
Customer Onboarding Expenses 12.88

Other Expense Provision Written OFff 13.99 -
Miscellaneous expenses 103 047
Total 597,50 285.98

==l

1, Auditor's remuneration

Partlculars Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2020 2019

Audit fees 165 265

Tax audlt fees 0.29 028

Other services 0.84 017

3.78 3.10

2, Corporate Soclal Responslbillty (CSR)

In respect of Corporate Soclal Responsibility activitles, gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year was Rs. 21 30 millions in FY 2019-20 {Previous Year Rs. 19.50 millions) and

Company has spent Rs. 21.30 millions in FY 2019-20 {Previous Year Rs, 19,70 millions).

Earning per share

Partlculars Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2020 2019

Followlng reflects the profit and share data used in EPS computations;

Baslc

Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Basic EPS { In Millions ) 556.10 47166

Net profit for calculation of basic EPS 950 89 752 86

Baslc earning per share {InRs ) 1.78 1.60

Dlluted

Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Diluted EPS { In Millions ) 558.90 474,51

Net profit for calculation of Diluted EPS 990,89 75286

Dlluted earning per share { In Rs ) 1.77 1.59

Norminal value of equity shares ( In Rs ) 10.00 10.00
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DMI Finance Private Limlted
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwlse)

32 Disclosures In respect of Related Partles as per Indlan Accounting Standard (IndAS) - 24 'Related Party Disclosures

(3] Detail of related parties

Nature of relationship

Name of Related party

Holding company

DMI Limited

Subsidiary Companies

DMI Management Services Private Limited
DMI Capital Private Limited

Associate Compary

DMI Alternatives Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

BNl Consumer Credit Private Limited
DMI Housing Finance Private Limited

Key Management Personnel

Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee
Mrs. Bina Singh

Mrs, Jayati Chatterjee

Mr. Gurcharan Das

Mr. Nipender Kochhar

Mr. Jatinder Bhasin

Mr. Sahib Pahwa

Relative of key management personnel

Mrs. Mallika Singh
Ms. Promita Chatterjee

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by
Management personnel or their relatives

DMI Capital Fund LP
Compro Technologies Private Limited
K2VZ, Partnership Firm

{b} Significant transactions with related parties:

Sale/purchase of services/assets

Purchase of services Sale of services/ Amount owed by Amount owed to

/ assets assets related parties

related parties

Comprao Technologles Private Limlted
2020
2019

DMI Houslng Finance Private Limited
2020
2019

DMI Management services Private Limited
2020
2019

DMI Capiltal Private Limited
2020
2019

DMI Alternative Private Limited
2020
2018

Bina Singh
2020
2019

DMI Limlted
2020
2019

ESOP's to Employees of DMI Alternatives Private
Limited

2020

2019

ESOP's to Employees of DMI Houslng Flnance Private
Limited

2020

2019

0.73 5.98

. 64.44 .
: 253.79

0.06 -
0.60 g

E 0.60 =
0.60 -

1.55 = -
2.60 =

= 3.92
¥ 3.48

7.40
3.48

4.15
2.60



DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Disclosures in respect of Related Parties as per Indian Accounting Standard (IndAS) - 24 'Related Party Disclosures’ {contd)

Loans taken and repayment thereof

Interest paid
{exclusive of TDS)

Amount owed by
related partles

DMI Capital Fund LP
2020
2019

Ms. Mallika Singh
2020
2019

Mr. Yuvra)a Chanakya Singh
2020
2019

DM! Alternatives Private Limited
2020
2019

Ms, Bina Singh
2020
2019

Loans Interest accrued

t f
takel:r:épr;:? er/ {Inclusive of TDS)
(414.34) 40,86

{2.00) 0.20

(12.56) 1.24
60.00 2.19
(2.25) 0.22

85.54
0.18

111

0.20

Advance given and repayment thereof

Advance {taken)/ Interest on loan,
given if any

Repayment

Amount owed to
related parties

DMI Houslng Finance Private Limited
2020
2019

DMI Management services Private Limited
2020
2019

430.00 9.01

17.45 -

{430.00)

{17.45)

17.45

Relmbursement

Reimbursement

of expense pald of expense
Amount owed to
Reimbursement of expense by related party Incurred an related party
on behalf of behalf of related
entity party

DMI Housing Finance Private Limited
2020 0.98 = =
2019 = =
DMI Alternative Private Limited
2020 - 0.88 =

2019




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Remuneration to key managerial personnel March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh, Jt. Managing Director

Remuneration 57.54 57.28
Post employment benefits 0.36 0.36
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee, Jt. Managing Director

Remuneration 56.08 233.97
Post employment benefits 0.36 0.36
Mrs. Jayatl Chatterjee, Director

Sitting fees 0.16 0.20
Mrs. Bina Singh, Director

Sltting fees 0.06 0.10
Mr. Gurcharan Das

Sitting fees 0.06 0.08
Mr. Nipender Kochhar 0.16 0.20
Sitting fees *
Mr. latinder Bhasin

Yearly Remuneration 10.00 10.00
Mr. Sahib Pahwa

Yearly Remuneration 3.40 3.43
Shares issued/ purchased from related party March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019
DMI Limited

Issue of equity shares 1,714.63 9,190.81
DMI Capiltal Fund LP

Issue of equity shares 7 414.34
Ms. Bina Singh

Issue of equity shares = 2.25

Ms. Mallika Singh
Issue of equity shares - 2.00

K2VZ, Partnership Firm
Issue of equity shares 32.11 -

Others

During the Year ended March 31, 2020, the company has down sold certain non convertible debentures to Mr. Sahib Pahwa for
consideration as mentioned below:

Sale of NCDs- Nil {(Mar'19: Rs. 1.02 Millions)

During the Year ended March 31, 2020, the company has down sold and purchased certain non convertible debentures from Mrs. Jayati
Chatterjee for consideration as mentioned belaw:

Sale of NCDs- Rs 1.24 Millions (Mar'19: Nil)

Purchase of NCDs- Rs 1,20 Millions (Mar'19: Nil)

During the Year ended March 31, 2020, the company has down sold and purchased certain non convertible debentures from Ms. Promita
Chatterjee for consideration as mentioned below:
Sale of NCDs- Rs. 0.53 Millions {Mar'19:Nil)
Purchase of NCDs- Rs. 0.51 Millions {Mar'19: Nil}
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

38 The outbreak of COVID-19 virus continues to spread across the globe including India, resulting into a significant decline and
volatility in financial markets and a significant decrease in global and local India’s economic activities. The Company is mainly engaged
in providing unsecured personal loans to individuals and project finance for real estate development. All of these segments will be
significantly impacted by reduced income and/or job losses of the borrowers, reduced economic activities and delay in completion and
sale of real estate projects due to the disruption caused by the pandemic. All these will lead to major cash flow constraints and erosion
in the asset values.

To deal with this disruption and in accordance with RBI guidelines relating to CoVID-19 Regulatory Package dated 27 March 2020 and
17 April 2020, the RBI, the Company has granted moratorium of three months on the payment of all instalments falling due between 1
March 2020 to 31 May 2020 to all eligible borrowers who have requested for the moratorium, The RBI via press release dated May 22,
2020 has permitted lending institutions to extend the moratorium by another three months, i.e., from June 1, 2020 to August 31,
2020. The Company will be providing option for extending the moratorium to its eligible borrowers’ basis its approved board policy.

There were fewer loan disbursements during the lockdown period and the timeline for the resumption and normalization of the
Company’s lending activity will be affected by several factors including, but not limited to, including the pace of easing of the lockdown
restrictions,

An inherent part of the Company’s business model is to raise borrowing for onward lending to its customers. The total borrowing of
the Company as at 31 March 2020 are Rs.25648.45 Millions.

The Company has not sought moratorium in respect of its borrowing in accordance with RBI guidelines relating to COVID-19
Regulatory Package dated March 27, 2020, April 17, 2020 and May 22, 2020. The management has performed a detailed assessment
of its monthly cash inflows and outflows for next 12 months and concluded that it will be able to meet its obligations even though its
monthly collections remain below normal due to continuation of lockdown.

In addition, the Company has also considered the following key matters in determining its liquidity position for the next 12 months:

a. Stimulus packages of the Government of India, for small businesses, migrants, small farmers and poor who essentially comprise the
customer base of the Company;

b. Schemes announced by the Government of India, which will directly benefit Non-Banking Financial Companies through guarantees
from the Government of India. The Company has evaluated these schemes and is considering applications to seek fund under the
schemes;

¢. Current status / outcomes of discussions with the Company's lenders, seeking moratorium on the Company's debt service
obligations to such lenders;

d.Status of its requests for additional funding, from existing lenders as well as others

The Company has recorded an expected credit loss provision of Rs.1570.73 Millions at 31 March 2020 in respect of its loans and
advance. In accordance with the guidance from ICAl, extension of the moratorium to borrowers by the Company pursuant to the RBI
guidelines relating to COVID 19 Regulatory Package dated March 27, 2020 and April 17, 2020 and RBI press conference, by itself is not
considered to result in a SICR for a borrower. Given the unique nature and scale of the economic impact of this pandemic, the credit
performance and repayment behaviour of the customers need to be monitored closely. The expected credit loss estimate is based on
various highly uncertain and unobservable factors. In the event the impact of pandemic is more severe or prolonged than anticipated,
this will have a corresponding impact on the carrying value of the financial assets, results of operation and the financial position of the
Company.




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

39 Maturity analysis of Assets and Liabilities:

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars Within 12 After 12 months Total Within 12 After 12 months Total
months months
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,190.89 - 1,190.89 429.58 - 429.58
Bank balance other than Cash and cash
equivalents 15.20 - 15.20 14.70 . 14.70
Derivative financial instruments = - - - -
Receivables < = - - . -
(1) Trade Receivables 35.40 - 35.40 8.21 - 8.21
(I) Other Receivables = = - - - -
Loans 18,347.05 15,006.46 33,353.51 10,724.07 10,477.41 21,201.48
Investments 12,285.67 3,008.41 15,294.08 5,189.30 4,452.16 9,641.46
Other financial assets 216.13 303.54 519.67 660.57 10.56 671.13
Non- financal assets = -
Current tax assets (net) 154,51 - 154.51 109.81 - 109.81
Deferred tax assets (net) - 319.78 319.78 - 45.43 45.43
Property, plant and equipment 34.26 353.27 387.53 - 70.14 70.14
Intangible assets . 7.55 7.55 - 5.96 5.96
Other non- financial assets 332.46 . 332.46 123.21 - 123.21
Assets held for sale E 189.85 189.85 - 533.70 533.70
32,611.57 19,188.86 51,800.43 17,259.45 15,595.36 32,854.81
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabllities
Payables
() Trade Payables
{i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises = H = S : -
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 195.24 - 195.24 94,73 - 94.73
Debt Securities 4,744.57 18,053.00 22,797.57 3,289.92 2,492.36 5,782.28
Borrowings {other than Debt Securities)
1,473.46 1,617.82 3,091.28 1,945.60 2,526.12 4,471.72
Other financial liabilities 225.48 107.63 333.11 217.86 33.55 251.41
Non financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities {net) = - = - - g
Provisions = = - = = -
Deferred tax liabilities (net) - - - . ] -
Other Non-financial liabitilies 622.98 - 622.98 252.89 - 252,89
Equity 1 .
Equity share capital - 5,592.94 5,592.94 = 5,487.41 5,487.41
Other equity - 19,167.31 19,167.31 - 16,514.37 16,514.37
7,261.73 44,538.70 51,800.43 5,801.00 27,053.81 32,854.81
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

40.7 Impact on fair value of level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value of changes to key assumptions
The table summarises the valuation techniques together with the significant unobservable inputs used to calculate the fair value of the Company’s Level 3 assets

and liabilities.

Mar'20 Falr Vajue gf Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs
Level 3 Assets

DMI Capital Private Limited - CCPS 310.68 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount Margin/Spread

DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited 3.16 Net Worth of Investee Company Instrument Price

Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Co.Ltd. 226.20 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount Margin/Spread

Credit Subsitutes 419.58 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount Margin/Spread

DI Housing FInance Private Limited - Equity Shares - Net Worth of Investee Company Instrument Price

Flash Electronics (Shares Investment) 250.19 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Instrument Price

Compulsory Convertible Debentures 773.17 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount Margin/Spread

NCD Unquoted 120.76 Discounted Praojected Cash Flows Discount Margin/Spread

Mar'19

Fair Value of
Level 3 Assets

Valuation technique

Significant unobservable inputs

DM Capiltal Private Limited - CCPS 293.12 Net Worth of Investee Company Instrument Price
DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited 3.00 Net Worth of Investee Company Instrument Price

316.68 Discc.Junted P.rojected Cash Flows/Price- Instrument Price

Earning Multiple Method

Alchemist Asset Reconstructlon Co.Ltd.
Credlt Subsltutes 895.85 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount Margin/Spread
DM Housing Finance Private Limited - Equity Shares 264.87 Net Worth of Investee Company Instrument Price
Flash Electronics {Shares Investment) 250.00 Net Worth of Investee Company Instrument Price
Compulsory Convertible Debentures 772.93 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount Margin/Spread
NCD Ungquoted 917.41 Discaunted Projected Cash Flaws Discount Margin/Spread

40.8 Quantitative analysls of significant unobservable inputs

Instrument Price

Given the nature of this approach, there is no range of prices used as inputs.

Discount margin/spreads

Discount margin/spreads represent the discount rates used when calculating the present value of future cash flows. In discounted cash flow madels such spreads
are added to the benchmark rate when discounting the future expected cash flows. Hence, these spreads reduce the net present value of an asset or increase the
value of a liability. They generally reflect the premium an investor expects to achieve over the benchmark interest rate to compensate for the higher risk driven by
the uncertainty of the cash flows caused by the credit quality of the asset. They can be implied from market prices and are usually unobservable for illiquid or

complex instruments,




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

40.9  Sensitivity of falr value measurements to changes in unobservable market data

The table below describes the effect of a 10% movement in the significant unobservable input.
All changes, except for financial instruments at FVOCI would be reflected in statements of Profit and Loss.

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable
Particulars
changes changes changes changes
INR million INR million INR million INR million
Instruments measured through FVTPL
DMI Capltal Private Limited - CCPS 30.33 (30.33) 29.31 (29.31)
Total (A) 30.33 {30.33) 29.31 {29.31)
Instruments measured through FVTOCI
DM)I Consumer Credit Private Limlted 0.32 {0.32) 0.30 {0.30)
Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Co.Ltd. 22.62 (22.62) 31,67 (31.67)
Credit Subsitutes 41,96 {41.96) 89.58 {89.58)
NCD Unquoted 12.08 (12.08) 91.74 {91.74)
DM! Housing Finance Private Limited - Equity Shares - 26.49 (26.49)
Flash Electronlcs (Shares Investment) 25,00 {25.00) 25.00 (25.00)
Compulsory Convertible Debentures 77.32 (77.32) 77.32 {77.32)
Total (B} 179.30 (179.30) 342,11 (342.11)
Total (A+8) 209.63 (209.63) 371.42 (371.42)

40.10 Falr value of financial Instruments not measured at fair value

Set out below Is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in the financial statements. This table
does not inciude the falr values of non-flnancial assets and non—financial liabilitles,

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Flnanclal Assets: Fair Value Carrying Fair Value Carrying
Value Value

Loans and advances

Corporate Loans 11,630.70 11,735.33 10,595.72 10,335.80
Investments — at amortised cost

NCD { Quoted) 1,255.61 1,227.52 1,446.78 1,651.05
Financlal Llabllltles:
Debt securities

Non convertible debentures 21,676.24 21,303.00 3,570.94 3,300.00

Valuatlon methodologles of financial Instruments not measured at fair value
Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measured at fair value in the company'’s financial
statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables.

Borrowlngs - At Amortlised cost
These includes Term Loans. The fair values of such liabilities are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash flows using actual or estimated yields and
discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties’ credit risk. These instrument are classified in Level 3.

Investments - At amortised cost
These includes Quoted non convertible debenture & corporate loans. The fair values of such instruments are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash flows
using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterpartles’ credit risk. These instrument are classlified in Level 3

Assets and Llabilities other than above
The carrying value of assets and liabilities other than investments and borrowings at amortised cost represents a reasonable approximation of fair value




DMI Finance Prlvate Limited
Notes to the Standal Flnanclal St its for the Year ended March 31, 2020
(All Amount in Rs. In crores, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

41 Disclosures In accordance with RBI circular no. DNBR (PD) CC.No.002/03.10.001/2014-15 dated ber 10, 2014 and subseq clrcutar no. DNBR (PD) CC.No. 029/ 03.10.001/ 2014-15 dated Aprll 10,
2015 and amendments thereof
{RBI Disclosure made as at 31 March 2020 has been computed In line with RBI notiflcation dated 13 March 2020 w.r.t. | pl lon of Indian A Ing standards, and hence, are not comparable with

the previous years disclosure)

1} Registration/ license/ authorlzation, by whatever name called, obtalned from other financlal sectar regulators;
DMI Finance Pvt. Ltd. is a private limited company registered with Reserve Bank of India as a Non- banking finance company vide certificate of registration no.14.03176 dated
January 5, 2009

ii) Ratings asslgned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year;
During the yizar the following ratings have been assigned to the Company

Name of Rating Amount - Change during
Ratin Type of Faclll At the beginning of the year Remarks
Agency Rated {Cr) s b R e e ¥ the year
Long Term Fund Based ati -affi N ber ath,
Brickwork Ratings 900 BWR AA- B undbase BWR AA- Mo Change | \oungre-affirmed on November ath
Bank Limits 2019
During the year the am of rati
Brickwork Ratings 130 BWR AA- Long Term NCDs BWR AA- No Change gthey & amount of rating
|__was changed from 350 Cr te 130 Cr
Long Term Fund Based
CARE Ratings 900 CARE AA- g1e un CARE AA- No Change Rating re-affirmed on August 1st, 2019
Bank Limits
During the the t of rati
CARE Ratings 785 CARE AA- Long Term NCDs CARE AA- No Change B the year the amount of rating
was changed from 500 Cr to 785 Cr
Short Term Commercial
ICRA Ratlngs 300 ICRA A1+ rPaper ICRA A1+ No Change Rating re-affirmed on March 26th, 2015

Note 1:The rating Is subjected to annual surveillance till final repayment/redemption of rated facilities

I} Penaltles, If any, levied by any regulator;
No penalties have been levied by any of the regulators of the company,

Iv) Information namely, area, country of operation and Jolnt venture partners with regard to JoInt ventures and overseas subsidiarles and
The company has Its main operations in India sltuated In Delhi/NCR and also has offices situated in Mumbal and Hyderabad. The company has not entered into any joint

ventures and does not have any overseas subsidiarles.

1} Capital to risk assets ratlo {CRAR)*

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
i) CRAR (%) 44.00% 65.85%
il) CRAR- Tier | capltal (%) 43.31% 65.07%
Iii) CRAR- Tier Il capltal (%) 069% 0.78%
iv) Amount of subordinated debt ralsed as Tler-Il capital - .
v) Amount ralsed by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments ]
* Refer to note 33 in financial statements for basis of reporting CRAR
11} Investments
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1) Value of Investments
i) Gross Value of Investments (at cost)*
a) In India 1,549.50 933.22
b) Outside India - .
iil) Provisions for Depreciation**
a) In India 20.10 8.07
b) Qutside India - -
ii) Net Value of Investments
a) In India 1,529.40 925.15
b) Outside india
2) Movement of pravlisions held towards depreciation on investments.
i) Opening Balance 8.07 1302
il) Add: Provisions made during the year 12.03 -
iil) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year - 495
v) Closing Balance 20.10 8.07
“The company has investment in FVOCI and FVTPL category, the falr valuation of which is included in the gross value of investment,
**Provision of depreciation comprises of impairment loss allowance on the investments
1t} Derlvatives
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

i) The notional principal of swap agreements
ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their obligations under the agreements

iii) Collateral required by the NBFC upon entering into swaps
iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps $
v) The falr value of the swap book @
Note :Nature and terms of the swaps including informatlon on credit and market risk and the accounting

policies adopted for recarding the swaps should also be disclosed.
$ Examples of concentration could be exposures to particular industrles or swaps with highly geared

companies.

@ If the swaps are linked to specific assets, liabilities, or commitments, the fair value would be the estimated
amount that the NBFC would receive or pay to terminate the swap agreements as on the balance sheet date




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financlal Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2020

IV) Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derlvatives
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

(i} Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year {instrument-wise} . -

{il) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on March 31, 2020 {instrument-
wise)

{iif) Notional princlpal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effectlve” (instrument- - -
wise)

Mark-ta-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective” {Instrument- - -
wise}

V) Disclosures on Risk Exposure In Derivatives
Qualitative Disclosure
The company does not deal In derivatives therefare no details are to be disclosed

Quantitative Disclosures

SI. No. Partlcular Currency Derivatives Interest Rate Derlvatives
(i) Derivatives {Notional Principal Amount)
For hedging - -

(i) Marked to Market Positlons [1)
(a) Asset{+) E
(b) Liabllity {-)

{ill) Credit Exposure :
{iv) Unhedged Exposures =

VI} Disclosures relating to Securitlzation March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
S. No. Partlculars Rs, Rs.

1 No of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitization transactions®
2 Total amount of securitized assets as per books of the SPVs sponsared
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet - -
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
Flrst loss - -
Others - -
b) On-balance sheet exposures
First loss -
Others - -
4 Amount of exposures to securltizatlon transactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures - -
1) Exposure to own securitizatlons
Flrst loss - -
Others - -
i) Exposure to third party securltizations
First loss %
Others -
b) On-balance sheet exposures
i} Exposure to own securitizatlons - -
First loss -
Others
11} Exposure to third party securitizations
First loss ]
Others - -
*this includes credit substitutes and PTCs subcribed/purchased through a securitization transaction

Detalls of Financlal Assets sold to Securitlzation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Recanstructlion
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

i) No. of accounts =
ii) Aggregate value {net of provislons) of accounts sold to SC / RC -
ill) Aggregate consideration <
iv) Additional consideratlon reallzed in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
v) Aggregate gain / loss aver net book value ' -

Detalls of Assignment transactions undertaken by NBFCs
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

1) No. of accounts -
ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold -
iii) Aggregate consideration
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years . -
v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value




Vi) Detalls of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold
A. Detalls of non-performing financial assets purchased :

Particulars

1 {a) No. of accounts purchased during the year
(b) Aggregate outstanding
2 {a) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year
(b) Aggregate outstanding

B. Details of Non-performing Financlal Assets sold :

Particulars

1 No. of accounts sold
2 Aggregate outstanding
3 Aggregate consideration received

DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financlal Statements for the Year ended March 31,2020

ViIt} Asset LiabHity Management Maturity pattern of certaln Items of Assets and Liabllitles
Matwrity pattem otfasscts and liubilitics as on March 31, 2020;

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Porticulars Upto 1 month 1 to 2 months 2 to 3 months 3 to 6 months 6 months to | 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years Ower 5 years Total
ear

Invesimwnrs - - - |, 1%k 65 £ - - - 100 19 1,206,84
Poerwngs 4 s 14 003 | a8 45 13777, 24 3 459 57 1,485 31} - 1.564.83
Advancus * 21791 1RO &3 25243 54784 67251 LI16R 07 31004 18333 3,532.96
Other tinancial 094 - 1672 388 007 014 08l 2941 51.97
assets
# Metollvase liability recognized undur Ind AS 116 in respect of leases (nther than short-torm lowses)
* Net of provision for expected credit loss on Stage 1T loans, Further,Advances include Non-Convertible Debentures(NCD) and Compulsaiily Convertible Debentures(CCD) classitied as
investments in the financials
The above nuturity pattern exuept investment is bascd on the undiscounted contiactual cash tlows under the respective arangements basis which such assets and liabilitics have been
reeognized The fair value of investment has been considered in more than 5yuars bucket
Maturity pattem ot asscts and labilitics as on March 31, 2019:
Particulars Upto 1 month I to 2 months 2 to 3 mouths 3 to 6 months 6 months to 1 1to3 years 3to 5 years Ower 5 years Total

year
Investments - - - 480 67 - - - 118 90) 599.57
Torrowgngs 34,54 1003 5502 66301 36047 472,80 3213 - 1,031.29
Advances * 14032 118 69| 10973 286 06 397 27| 651,60 23891 106, 1,943.64
Other financial 48 84 205 143 421 515 3 96| 001 1.06 67.11
ussels

* Net of prowision fir expected credit Toss on Stage T lans

The above maturity pattern is based on the undiscounted contractual cash flows under the respective arrangements basis which such asscts

and liabilitics have been recognized

Nature of [raud

Cash gmbezzlememn

Nlature of fraud

Cash embezzlement
Loan given agalnst fictitious documents

X Instances of fraud for the Year ended March 31, 2020
Mo, of cases Amt of fraud Recovery Amt. written off
Loan glven agalnst flctitious documents i 112 112
Instances of fraud for the Year ended March 31, 2019
Mo, of cases Amt, of fraud Recovery Amt, written off]
1 112 - -

Fraud by external party




DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financlal Statements for the Year ended March 31,2020

X)  Exposures
Exposure to Real Estate Sector

Category
a) Direct Exposure
1} Residentlal Mortgages -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is
rented
il} Commercial Real Estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates {office bulldings, retail space, multipurpose
commercial premises, multi-famlily residential buildings, multi-tenanted commerclal premises, industrlal or
warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.), Exposure would also include
non-fund based limits
1ll) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securlties (MBS) and other securitized exposures -
Residential
Commerclal Real Estate
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector
*Includes exposure to sub-standards assets as well

Exposure to Capital Market

Category
{f) direct Investment In equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented

mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively Invested in corporate debt;
(il) advances agalnst shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment
In shares {Including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented

mutual funds;
(1) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertlble debentures or units of

equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security;

{Iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds
or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds l.e, where the primary security other than
shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds ‘does not fully

cover the advances;
{v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees Issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market

makers;

(vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the securlty of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on
clean basls for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resources;

{vll) bridge loans to companles against expected equity flows / issues;

(viii) all exposures to Venture Capltal Funds {both reglstered and unregistered)
Total Exposure to Capltal Market

X1} Detalls of financing of parent company products
The company has not financed any Parent company product during the current year and previous year

Detalls of Single Barrower Limlt {SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC
The company has not exceeded any single or group borrower limits as per prescribed RBI guidellnes therefore

no details are being provided

XN) Provislons and Contingencies

Break up of "Provislons and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

Provisions for depreciation on Investment
Provision made towards Income tax

Provision for gratuity

Provision for compensated absences
Impairment of Financial Assets {net of write off)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
60.97 210
955.96 1,115.49
1,016.93 1,117.59
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
177.50 152,75
352,63 380.78
=3 1.05
530.13 534.58

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

12.02
54.81

102
14129

{4.95)
3153

0,55
58.25




DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financlal Statements for the Year ended March 31,2020

XIll} Draw Down from Reserves
The company has not draw downed any amount from the Reserves during the current year and previous year

XIV) Concentration of Dep Advances, Exp es and NPAs
Concentration of Deposits
Concentratlon of Advances

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances

Concentration of Exposures

Tatal Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure of the borrowers /
customers

Concentration of NPAs**
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts
**Represent Stage Il loans including Interest

Sector-wlse NPAs**

1 Agrlculture & allled actlvitles

2 MSME

3 Corporate borrowers

4 Services

5 Unsecured personal loans

6 Auto loans

7 Other personal loans(Loan against Property)
**Represent Stage Il loans Including interest

XV) Movement of NPAs
Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)
Movement of NPAs (Gross)
Opening balance
AddItlons during the year
Reductions during the year
Closing balance

Movement of Net NPAs
Opening balance
Additions during the year
Reductions during the year
Closing balance

Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
Opening balance

Provisions made during the year

Wrlte-off / write-back of excess provisions

Closing balance

XVI) Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)
The company does not have any Joint Venture or Subsidiary abroad, therefore no details to be reported

XVN) Off- Balance sheet SPVs sponsored
The company dees not have any Off- Balance sheat SPV, therefore no details to be reported

XVIlt) Customer Complalnts
No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year
No. of complaints received during the year
No. of complaints redressed during the year
No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

XIX) Disclosure of Gold Loan Portfollo
Total Gold Loan Portfolio
Total Assets
Gold loan portfollo as % of Total Assets

XX) Disclosure of Gold Auction
Number of loan accounts
Outstanding Amount
Value fetched on auctions

XX1) Unsecured Advances

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2019

1,195.21
32.09%

1,195.21
32.09%

116,34

March 31, 2020
Percentage of NPAs to Total
Advances In that sector

9.85%

1,097.60
42,51%

1,097.60
42.51%

55.94

March 31, 2019

Percentage of NPAs to Total
Advances In that sector

3.66%

1.31% 1.60%
0.17% 100.00%
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
2.07% 1,27%
7257 29.99
151,21 4368
5267 105
17111 72.57
3142 18.02
27.67 13.40
{10.02) -
69.11 31.42
4115 11.92
12354 3028
62.69 1.05
102.00 41,15
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
394 -
23,430 3,634
23,315 3,240
509 394
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
2,214.13 1,01012




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

42 Prudential Floor for Impairment Loss
Amount in Rs. Crores

Difference
Loss Allowances between Ind AS
Asset {Provisions) as Provisions 109 provisions
classification as |Gross Carrying Amount required under Ind |Net Carrying  [required as per |and IRACP
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms  [per Ind AS 109 |as per Ind AS AS 109 Amount IRACP norms norms
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (71 = {4)-(6)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 3,312.69 38.18 3,274.51 13.25 24.93
Stage 2 241.20 16.89 22431 6.60 10.29
Subtotal 3,553.89 55.07 3,498.82 19.85 35.22
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 - - - - -
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 117.01 80.95 36.06 23.40 57.55
1to 3 years Stage 3 54.11 21.06 33.05 16.23 4.83
More than 3 years Stage 3
Subtotal for doubtful 171.12 102.01 69.11 39.63 62.38
Loss Stage 3
Subtotal for NPA 171.12 102.01 69.11 39.63 62.38
Other items such as guarantees, loan
commitments, etc. which are in the
scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered
under current Income Recognition, Asset
Classification and Provisloning (IRACP)
norms Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Subtotal
Total Stage 1 3,312.69 38.18 3,274.51 13.25 24,93
Stage 2 241.20 16.89 224.31 6.60 10.29
Stage 3 171.12 102.01 69.11 39.63 62.38
Total 3,725.01 157.08 3,567.93 59.48 97.60




{8) SMA/overdue categorles, where tha morstorium/daferment was extended

43 Disclosures pursuant to RBI Not!fication - RBI/2013-20/220 DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04,048/2019-20 dated 17 Aprll 202¢

Amount in Rs, Crores

Asset Classification ] Total Exposura ECL provisl ]
SMA (SMA -0} . s 54563 830
Overdue - Standard 16342 756 |
Overdue - Others B -
Total ] 708.75 15.86

Note: Numbers represents contractual cashiiows

(b) Asset classification benefit extension

Asset classification benefit has been extended to 7,210 accounts having total cutstanding of Rs. 122.44 Crore as at 31 March 2020,

For 5.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP
ICAI Flrm Reglstration No. 101043W/€300004
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